
 
Chowan County Board of Commissioners 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 21, 2024 

Chowan County Public Safety Center 
305 West Freemason Street 

6:00pm 
 

 
This meeting was recorded. A copy of the recording is in the meeting file labeled October 21, 
2024. 
 
Present: Vice Chairman Larry McLaughlin; Commissioners, Ron Cummings, Ellis Lawrence, 
Tray Taylor and Alex Kehayes. 
 
Absent: Chairman Bob Kirby and Commissioner Chris Evans 
 
Staff present County Manager Kevin Howard and Board Clerk Susanne Stallings and Finance 
Officer Cathy Smith. 

 
Regular Meeting 
Vice Chair McLaughlin called the regular meeting to order and led in the pledge.   
 
Commissioner Kehayes then offered the invocation. 
 
Approval of Agenda  
Board Clerk Susanne Stallings presented the following requests to amend the agenda: 

- Recommendation to add purchase of AED to item 8A 
 

Commissioner Kehayes moved to approve the agenda as amended.  
 
Vice Chair McLaughlin asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (5-0). 
 
Public Comment 
Vice Chair McLaughlin opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was none.  
 
Consent Agenda  
 

a. Minutes  
The Board will review and consider approval of the October 7, 2024 Regular and 
Special Meeting minutes. 

 
b. Animal Shelter Vehicle Purchase 



The Board is asked to consider approval of a van purchase in the amount of 
$10,000, utilizing donation monies from the Animal Shelter budget to purchase a 
used van for transport of animals and supplies.  
 

 
 
Commissioner Taylor moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Vice Chair 
McLaughlin asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (5-0). 
 
Shepard Pruden Memorial Library Board Bylaw Amendment 
Ms. Stallings noted that the Librarian was not able to attend the  meeting due to a schedule 
conflict. She read a statement from the Librarian into the record: 
 
“The Shepard-Pruden Memorial Board of Trustees have voted unanimously to amend the by-
laws to leave the exact meeting time up to the Board of Trustees. The quarterly meeting schedule 
will stay the same, only that the time will no longer be strictly 5:30 PM but rather decided at the 
start of the fiscal cycle. This was decided to facilitate the schedules of Board of Trustee 
members, especially with new members coming onto the board at the start of the fiscal cycle. 
This amendment of the by-laws also allows for flexibility with regard to events at the Library 
and unexpected closures or delays. All the boards of the other libraries in the Pettigrew Regional 
Library system as well as the Regional Board of Trustees have made this change to their by-
laws. We ask that the Chowan County Commissioners approve this by-law change." 

 
Commissioner Kehayes moved to approve the amendment as presented. Vice Chair McLaughlin 
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (5-0). 
 
DSS Retention Incentive Policy Amendment 
DSS Director Tyeshia Phelps presented the Board with a request from the DSS Board for an 
amendment to their Retention Incentive Policy. The amendment proposes exempting retirees 
from repaying the incentive if they choose to retire within the same fiscal year and has been 
employed with the agency for the last 5 years consecutively.  
 
Board members discussed the potential payback that employees would have to pay. 
 
Ms. Phelps noted that some employees were given a $2,500 bonus while others received $1,500. 
She stated the amount of the bonus was based on longevity. She stated the purpose of the 
incentive bonus was to retain employees and encourage them to stay with Chowan DSS. She 
noted she did not realize at the time of preparing the incentive policy that when an employee 
retires they are considered terminated from payroll and are responsible for payback under the 
current policy. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence moved to approve the policy amendment as presented.  
 
Vice Chair McLaughlin asked if the pay back was explained to retirees when the policy was put 
in place. 



 
Ms. Phelps stated that it was not that only taxes were discussed. 
 
Vice Chair McLaughlin asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (5-0). 
 
Jail Ice Maker Purchase 
Mr. Howard presented the Board with a request to purchase a new ice maker for the jail. The 
current ice maker has had multiple repairs and is nearing the end of operation. Additionally, he 
provided a quote for $4,995 plus a $535 annual service agreement. He stated the current ice 
maker has reached its end of life.  He stated that the purchase can be done using ARPA funds. 
 
Commissioner Taylor moved to approve the purchase of the ice maker and the annual service 
contract. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin asked if any other quotes were obtained. He stated this felt like a 
high price for a commercial ice maker. 
 
Mr. Howard stated the Sheriff brought the quote. He stated that that the Sheriff has indicated that 
if a new jail is built the ice make can be relocated to the new jail. 
 
Commissioner Taylor asked to amend his previous motion to approve the purchase as presented 
along with the service contract and request that the Sheriff find additional quotes to see if a lower 
purchase price can be obtained. 
 
Vice Chair McLaughlin asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (5-0). 
 
Annual Report  
Extension Director Mary Morris provided the Board with a video annual report from Chowan 
County Center North Carolina Cooperative Extension Service. A copy of the video presentation 
is saved in the Clerk’s digital file labeled October 21, 2024. 
 
Ms. Morris introduced the Board to the new District Director for NC Cooperative Extension 
Service, Sandy Hall. 
 
Travel Mileage Reimbursement 
Commissioner Lawrence requested approval of a reimbursement request for travel to Elizabeth 
City for COA Board of Trustees meetings and trainings. The total reimbursement request is 
$87.10. He noted that there have been two additional meetings since his initial request. 
 
Vice Chair McLaughlin asked if this would be a reoccurring expense. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence stated it would be for out of County meetings. 
 
Ms. Stallings noted that previously Board members were offered a stipend from some (not all) of 
the Boards that they are appointed to. She noted that initially Commissioner Lawrence was 
required to attend various orientations, meetings and swearing ins. She noted that the meeting 



schedule for the COA Board would decrease to only once per month. She also noted that 
Commissioner Lawrence had to attend mandatory training for the COA Board of Trustees in 
Asheville and COA did reimburse him for that travel expense. She stated that Board members 
can only be reimbursed from various Boards or Committees for their expenses or travel expense, 
they are not allowed to be paid a stipend for being on the Board. She stated that some Boards 
currently reimburse Commissioners for their travel to out of County meetings. She noted she 
contacted COA and they do not reimburse its Board members for the regular Board of Trustee 
meetings or for committee meetings.  
 
Commissioner Kehayes noted that some of the Boards that he is appointed to, require him to 
travel long distances for regional meetings. He stated that these Boards do reimburse the Board 
members for their travel expense. 
 
Commissioner Taylor moved to approve the travel reimbursement request from Commissioner 
Lawrence to cover his travel to COA Board meetings through the end of fiscal year 2024-25. 
Vice Chair McLaughlin asked for all in favor, the motion passed (4-1 Cummings). 
 
Purchase of AED (Automated External Defibrillator)  
EMS Director Colin Ryan provided the Board with a request to purchase AED equipment. He 
stated the current equipment is 19 years old.  The cost of the purchase is $21,728.43.  
 
Mr. Howard noted that the units would be purchased using ARPA funds.  
 
Commissioner Taylor moved to approve the purchase as presented. 
 
Commissioner Kehayes asked what would be done with the old units. 
 
Mr. Ryan stated that EMS would try to trade in the current units for a credit towards the 
purchase. 
 
Commissioner Cummings asked about the replacement schedule for batteries. 
 
Mr. Ryan stated that the current battery replacement  is every 4 years. He stated that the battery 
replacement expense comes out of the building maintenance line item. 
 
Vice Chair McLaughlin asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (5-0). 
 
Financial Items 
Finance Officer Cathy Smith presented the following: 

 
FY25 Budget Amendments 
BA2025-017 



 

*Preservation/Automation 515.76                     
*Dept Supplies - Auto/Pres 171.92                   
*Contr Svcs - Automation/Pres 171.92                   
*C/O - Auto / Pres 171.92                   

*KIDS & COPS 581.00                     
*KIDS & COPS Expense 581.00                   

*Donations - Chowan 2,399.53                 
*Donations - Gates 268.00                     
*Donations - Perquimans 540.00                     
*Donations - Other 484.53                     
*Donation - Expense 3,692.06               
*Adoption - Chowan 550.00                     
*Adoption - Gates 550.00                     
*Adoption - Perquimans 350.00                     
*Adoption - Other 625.00                     
*Contr Svcs - Spay/Neuter 2,075.00               
*A.W.A.R.E. Reimbursement 7,957.52                 
*A.W.A.R.E. Reimbursement 7,957.52               

*AG Program Fees Discretionary 410.00                     
*Ag Program Fees Discretionary 410.00                   
*4H United Way 2,250.00                 
*4H United Way 2,250.00               
*4-H Fees Discretionary 30.40                       
*4-H Fees Discretionary 30.40                     
*Livestock Program 6,830.00                 
*Livestock Program 6,830.00               

*Recreation Donations 777.50                     
*Donations - Dept Supplies 777.50                   
*Recreation Special Events 495.00                     
*Recreation Special Events 495.00                   

*Reg Fees - Trips 2,395.50                 
*TRIPS - Senior Citizens 2,395.50               
*Silver Sneakers 846.00                     
*Renew Active 624.00                     
*Healthways 1,470.00               
*Donations - Fitness 147.75                     
*Donations - Fitness 147.75                   

*DSS Special Events 185.00                     
*DSS Special Events 185.00                   

Balanced 29,812.49               29,812.49             

Total Discretionary Income Received FYE 2025 97,792.60              

Justification:

Register of Deeds
11-3418-415-00
11-4180-298-00
11-4180-440-00
11-4180-511-00

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

11-3431-243-00
11-4317-443-00

Sheriff's Office

Animal Shelter
11-3438-894-00
11-3438-894-01
11-3438-894-02
11-3438-894-03

11-3438-897-00
11-4381-601-00

11-4381-600-00
11-3438-895-00
11-3438-895-01
11-3438-895-02
11-3438-895-03
11-4381-441-00

11-3495-370-00
11-4953-440-00

Cooperative Ext:

11-3495-379-00
11-4953-449-00

11-3495-372-00
11-4953-445-00
11-3495-378-00
11-4953-448-00

Recreation
11-3612-487-00
11-6130-299-01

Senior Center

11-3612-504-00
11-6132-453-00

11-3616-535-06
11-4268-352-02
11-3616-535-01
11-4268-352-01

11-3616-533-00
11-4268-312-00
11-3616-535-04

12-3531-230-14
12-5310-450-00

To amend the 2025 budget to include Discretionary income for September 2024.

DSS



 
 
BA2025-018 

 
 
BA2025-019 

 
 
BA2025-020 

Salaries - Regular (30,000.00)            
Prof Services - Temp Agency 30,000.00             

Balanced -                           -                         

Justification:

To amend the 2025 budget for Social Services to include additional staffing 
from Vanguard Professional Staffing.  This is a transfer between line items and 

no additional funding is being requested.

12-5310-198-00

DSS
12-5310-121-00

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

*Apex Grant - Story Walk 5,000.00                 
*Apex Grant - Story Walk Exp 5,000.00               

Balanced 5,000.00                 5,000.00               

Justification:

To amend the 2025 budget for Cooperative Extension to include grant received 
from Apex Clean Energy for the Story Walk.  BOCC approved grant application 

on 08/05/24.

11-4953-456-00

Coop Extension
11-3495-386-00

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 



 
 
 
Commissioner Cummings moved to approve the budget amendments as presented. Vice Chair 
McLaughlin asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (5-0). 
 

External Board/Committee Report 
Commissioner Lawrence shared that the Airport airshow was a success. Additionally, he shared 
information on the ECSU drone 
 
Manager’s Report 
County Manager Kevin Howard provided the following updates: 
 

- Mr. Howard noted that $66,000 remains in ARPA funds that has to be spent by the 
end of the calendar year. He stated that the remaining $195,000 has to be spent by the 
end of the fiscal year. He noted that monies designated for the CAB grant does not 
have to be used because no local match is required. He stated that staff is looking into 
options for use of the ARPA funds. 

 
- Mr. Howard noted that all projects are on schedule (High School, Courthouse). He 

stated that a change order will soon be presented for the high school project. He stated 
that the change order will address an overage in the technology budget. 
 

Timely and Important Matters 
Ms. Stallings noted the following meeting dates: 
 
Committee Meeting – Opioid Settlement Funds Committee 
The committee will have its first meeting on October 28, 2024 at 4pm. Commissioner Taylor 
serves as this committee chair. 
 
Commissioners Special Meeting - Joint meeting with Chowan County Planning Board to 
review Land Use Plan Updates - October 30, 2024 - 6pm 
 

Insurance Proceeds 8,985.98                 
Maint & Repairs - Vehicles 8,985.98               

Balanced 8,985.98                 8,985.98               

Justification:

To amend the 2025 budget for EMS to include Insurance Proceeds for motor 
vehicle accident.

60-4370-353-00

EMS
60-3437-850-00

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 



Commissioners Special Meeting – Water System Rate Study Review - November 12, 2024 – 
4pm 
 
 
Adjourn 
Being no further business, Commissioner Cummings moved that the meeting be adjourned. Vice 
Chair McLaughlin asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (5-0). 
 
 

 

 
_______________________________________  ______________________________ 
Larry McLaughlin, Vice Chair    Susanne Stallings, Clerk 

 

 


